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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Murphy House is a two-story brick Greek Revival mansion which has
been stuccoed over and scored to imitate stone. Across the front a full
length portico with marble flooring has six fluted Corinthian columns. . The
entablature with box-like dentils is supported by elaborate brackets. The
roof is hipped. -

On both floors the facade has four windows. All of these windows have
shutters and identical ornamental lintels. The ground floor windows are
floor length and give access to the portico. The central door is recessed-
and flanked by two small corinthian columns similar to the large ones. This
door has two glass panels, a transom and sidelights. Directly above is a

small cast iron balcony, reached by a second-story doorway.

The house has an interior central hallway, with a double parlor to the
right and a drawing room to the left. This drawing room was restored to
its 1930's appearance. The gilt-finish cornicing encircling the room is in
a Georgian shell pattern. A large imported pier mirror hangs at one end of
the room. The two heavy brass chandeliers are original and have been con-
verted to electricity.

An original one-story wing housed servants quarters, a brick kitchen,

and two marble baths. 1In 1930 it was replaced by the present two-story wingl.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Murphy House, built in 1851 by John H. Murphy, is one of Mont-
gomery's finest Greek Revival mansions. The history of the house is linked
to the history of the city. Presently owned by the Montgomery City Water
Works and Sanitary Sewer Board, it is an excellent example of adaptive use.

Born in Scotland in 1806, John H. Murphy immigrated to Virginia some-
time during the middle of late 1820's. Some evidence exists that the wife
he brought with him to Montgomery in 1844 was his second.

Settling in Montgomery, Murphy purchased a warehouse and became a
Commission Merchant. Soon he was one of the city's wealthiest citizens.
His real estate holdings in 1850 were valued at $75,000; in addition, he
owned 23 slaves. Murphy was also one of the incorporators of Montgomery's
first water works in 1854. When Murphy died in 1859, his family remained
in the house, which became a social center during the period of the Con-
federacy. Jefferson Davis, William L. Yancey and other notables of the
Confederacy were frequent visitors to the home.

In April of 1865 following the collapse of the Confederacy, Wilson's
Raiders reached Montgomery and the mansion was requisitioned as headquarters
for some of the Federal forces. When martial law was proclaimed, the Union
Provost Marshal took over the house as his headquarters.

After the war the Murphy family fortunes declined and eventually rooms
were rented out. Although the property remained in the hands of the family
until 1902, little is known about it in the intervening years. Col. William
P. Screws, city Commissioner and World War I commander of the Rainbow Divi-
sion, spent much of his boyhood here.

In 1902 the house was sold to the Benevolent and Protective Order of
Elks. A fire broke out in the area in 1927 and part of the house was damag-
ed by dynamite used to halt the spread of the fire. At this time a two-
story wing was added.

In 1967 the building was acquired by the Montgomery City Water Works
and Sanitary Sewer Board who restored it and now use it for their offices.
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